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- QUADROZZI ENTERPRISE CORP., QUADROZZI
EQUIPMENT LEASING CORP,, QUADROZZI INC. d/b/a
NYCEMUCO, QUADROZZI REALTY, INC, and BEACH
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© . end derivatively and on their behalf, '
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AND LEASING INC., RED

HOOK CONCRETE LOADING CORP., RED HOOK
TRUCK DEPQOT CORP., AMSTEL RECYCLING INC,,
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ENTERPRISE CORP., QUADROZZI EQUIPMENT
LEASING CORP., QUADROZZI, INC., d/b/a NYCEMCO
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The mdex number of the case in the court helow is
‘26125/95 :

'I'he full’ names of the ongmal parties are as set forﬁx
above. There have been no changes. -

The action was commenced in Supreme Court, Queens
County. .

The action was comimenced on or about November 10,
2005 by the filing of a Summons and Verified Complaint,
Issue was joined by the filing of a Verified Answer on or -
about January 26, 2006. The Defendants filed an -
Amended Verified Answer to the Verified Complaint on
or about November 1, 20086.

The nature and object of the action invelves Plaintiff
seeking issuance of shares of contested companies, infer
alia.

This appeal is from a Judgment, entered on June 23,
28140 in favor of Plaintiffs,

This appeal is on the full reproduced record.
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QUESTIONS PRESENTED

i Whether the trial court erred in its determination that the Certiﬁedﬂ
Transaction warranted the imposition of a construcﬁve trust in favor of
plaintiff Patrick Quadrozzi on 25% of the shares of the Certified
Companies?

2 Whether the trial court er:;e-d in déte‘nﬁining (1) that a claim for the

iﬁlposition ofa constructi#e trﬁst with respect to the -Ceﬁi_ﬁed Transaction

was ﬁm’eiy aséezteci within ﬁ:e applicable limitations period an,dfor-(-ii) that'

' defend'ants are estopped from ésSeﬁing the stat;né of Iimitations with respect
to such;'u'anéaction? -

3 Whethef the Vt_riai' court cn'ec_i in its determination that the Gowanus |

-'fraﬂsac.tion wa’rmnfed the imposition of a cdnsﬁuctive frust in favor of

plaintiff Patrick Quadrozzi on 25% of the shares of Gowanus?

“4. . Whether the trial court erred in determining (i) that any claim for
breach of ﬁduciary duty in connection with the Gowanus Transaction was
timely asserted within the applicable limitations period aﬁd/_br (i) that-

- defendants are estopped from asserting the statute of limitations with respect

to such transaction?



 PRELIMINARY STATEMENT
This is a family dispute that has more to do with conﬂi(;ting
personalities than any Iegaiiy actionable wmngd;ing-.. Plaintiff Patrick
Quadrozzi (“Patrick™) was given an ownership interest in certain compén;fes
‘which his omép brother John Quadrozzi, Sr. (“John Sr.”) owned and
managed. Tliereaﬁef, John Sr. formed new companies, in Whieﬁ Patrick did
not have any o@érship interest, to acquire other assets. Years later, after |
John Sr._d’ied, Patrick filed this action claiming an interest lin'those létér-
| formed cémpanigs andfor the assets which éiéy awn.- |
Patrick’s claims agaizist dgafendanté herein (_hi_sr sister—in-law, niece and’
nephew and the companies in which he has no awz‘;e.,hig interest) are
founded o his alleged perceptions, understandings and beliefs based on
some amﬁiguous, .non~s§eciﬁc.stataments atm'buted to his deceaséd older
brother, _aﬂd his aﬁeﬁ:h&fact objections to the manner in which the
businessés contmﬁed by John Sr. were managed. Patrick’s excuse for not
asseriing his clairﬁs within the applicable limitations periods -- and in fact

el - L T . il . - PR PUNEPO B SRS I S
waiting until after his brother’s death -- i3 that he could not be bothered to

brother’s largesse and business acumen, so he enjoyed his good fortune and



did not que_stioh John Sr.’s management and éontrpl of the varioﬁs
companies. Then, after John Sr.’s voicge Wk;iS 'stiiled by illness and evgntqa[
death, Patrick took the pqsition that he had not been givenﬁ e;zoﬁgh. Like
Patrick’s interest in the original companies, the interests in thé I_ater‘fonnéd

companies which the trial court awarded him was essentially a gift.

STATEMENT OF FACTS
’I’ he Parties |
‘.Patrick commcﬁced’ this action individually and dérivatively on behalf
ofa nﬁmber of companies that wére fn existence prior to the transactions
which are at issue in this action.’ The Original Quadiozzi Companies are
némed.as nominal défendan;s in Patn'ck’s -comp}aint herein; thc_z' other
defendants are the estate of John Sr. (“Bstate”), Theresa Quédmzzi,
individué[ly aﬁd as execuirix of the Estate {“Theresa’-’), Catherine Quadrozzi
(“Catheﬁne,” John Sr.’s 3aughtcr), John Quadrozzi, Jr. (*John Jr.,” John

Sr.’s son), and thirteen other companies, twelve of which were formed in

"Those companies are: Amstel Recycling, inc. {*Amstel™), Quadrozzi Concrete Corp.
(*QCC™), Quadrozzi Enterprisc Corp. (“QE"), Quadrozzi Equipment Leasing Corp.
{"QEL™), Quadrozzi Inc. d/b/a NYCEMCG (“NYCEMCO™, Quadrozzi Realty Corp.
(“QRC™ and Bezch Channe! Drive Land Enterprises, Inc. (“Beach Channei™)
{collectively referred to herein as the “Original Quadrozzi Companies™). Thereis
currently no dispite between the parties regarding Patrick’s 25% ownership of the

- Original Quadrozzi Companies as well as Bay 32™ Place Development Corp., one of the

other defendants named in Patrick’s complaint.



connéction with or as a résuit of tﬁe transactions at issue in this action.’
Those transactions are: (1) the acquisition int 990, by John Sr. and Michael |
DiBenedetto, p‘ursuant -to-fedf:ra»l court or;der through and/or for the Certiﬁed
Companies and/or of the -assets of Certified Concrete Corp. and Transit Mix
Concrete Corp. (hereinafier, the “Cemﬁed Transactlon ; (if) the acqulsz-tzon o
"in 1997, by John Sr., using his own assets and the proceed#. ofa loan, of |
- certain reﬁl p'mpértf off of chlumbia Street (the “Columbia Street
Pro%)erty”) in the G&Wanus s‘e_ction of Bfooklyn (heré’maﬂ'e'r; the “Gowanus
Trax-*:xsaction”); and (iii) the acquisitionriﬁ 1998, by certain of the Original
_ Quédmzzi Cempanie-s aéd céitain of the Certified Cmﬁpemées, of—-the assets

of the Qu&bfy C@mpames {heremaﬁer the “Quality Transad f}ﬂ"’}.3

2 Those twelve companies are Edgewater Concrete Loading Corp. (“Edgewater™), Harlem

Concrete Loading Corp. (“Harlem”), Manhattan West Concrete Loading Corp.
(“Manhattan West"), Maspeth Concrete Loading Corp. (“Maspeth™, Maspeth Truck
* Depot Corp. (“Maspeth Truck™), Quadrozzi Acquisition Corp. {“Quad Acquisition™),

Quadrozzi, LTD (“Quad LTDY), Red Hook Concrete Loading Comp. (“Red Hook

Concrete”) and Red Hook Truck Depot Corporation (“Red Hook Tmck”} {collectively
referred to herein as the “Certified Companies”™); Quality Concrete Corp. of New York
{“Quality™), Quality Assurance Concrete Corp. (“QAC™), Queens {Concrete) Delivery
and Leasing, Inc. ("Queens Delivery”) (coilectively rcferred to herein as the *“Quality

Pyl

Companies”); and Gowanus Industriai Park, Inc. (“Gowanus™)

* The Quality Transaction, while the subject of Patrick’s complaint herein, did not really
factor into the trial court’s decision in this case. It WIH therefore not be discussed at any

length in this brief.



[y r———

The Complaint _
Patrick alieges in his complaint with respect to the Certified

Trans_acf;ion and the Gowanus Transactic_m-“ that, although John Sr. acqﬁired
those assets in hié own name, Patrick was informed that he, di_rectiy or
through the Ori ginai Quadrozzi Companies, Qas a ‘fbeneﬁcia!" _shareﬁolder
of the C_ertiﬁed'Co.mpanies and ‘Gowanus, According to Patrick, John Sr.
agreed that shares reflecting such ownership “Would be” issued to Patrick or

the Original Quadrozzi Companies. (Compl't, 1§23, 24,30, 31,37, 3% R,,

- pp. 55a, 562, 57a)." -

_'In his-compiziint, Patrick seeks various forms of relief based upon: (i)
Tohn Sr.’s failure to comply with his alleged “agreemcnf” to issue shares of
the Certified Companies and Gowanus to either Patrick or the Original

Quadrozzi Companies; (i1) Theresa’s refusal, as the executrix of John Sr.’s

-estate, to issue sich shares to Patrick or the Original Quadrozzi Companies;

and (iii) alleged breaches of fiduciary duty by Théresa, Catherine and John
Jr., as directors and officers of all of the companies, following the death of
Iohn Sr. in 2004, Notably, the only affirmative conduct by Joha Sr. alleged

in Patrick’s complaint is John Sr.’s consummation of the Certified and

C PR ) . } .. Ly e . .
Similar atiegations were made with respect fo the Quality Transaction; however, as
noted absve, that transaction is not in issue on this appeal and is therefore not included in

this discussion.



Gowanus Transactions in ﬁis own name, and his alleged “agreements” with
res,pect-to the “beneficial” ownership of the assets acquired in those
transactions.® (Compl’t, $420, 23, 24, 35, 37, 38; R., pp. 55a-57a).

The Trial Court’s Decision

In its decision following the trial in this action, tﬁe trial court held
“that, basa;d on the eﬁdence adc_lucad at trial, Patrick had éstablished claims
for the imposition of a constructive trust and for breach of fiduciary duty by
John Sr. in connection with both the, Certified Transaction and the Gawanus
Transaction (R. pp 343, 35a, 433-50&1} The trial f‘ourt also found that such |
| .cialms were asserted w1thm the app!rcabls I:mztauans penod and/or that
defendants were estoppe»:i from asserting a defense based on the statute of
Iimitatim;s {R,, pp. 28a-33a, 404, .4la).

The Certrf' ed Transactmn

As to the Certified Transaction, the tnaI court fnund that the
“promise” element of a claim for constructive trust had been established
because (i} an imphied promise by John Sr. io act in the best interests of
Patrick and the Original Quadrozzi Companies arose from ..I‘oh_n St.’s role as

Ll

a corporate fiduciary, and (i) the use of the assets and/or credit of the

{R., p._)refers to the page number of the record on appeal.

% In its decision denying the partics’ summary judgment motions , the trial court also
attributed the alleged wrongdoing foliowing the asset acquisitions themselves to Theresa,
Catherine and John Jr., not Johin Sr. -



Original Quadmizzi Ccﬁpmiés to secure fhé purchase price of the asset§
acquired in the Certified Transaction and the usé of the personnel and assets
of the Original Quadrozzi Companies ‘anld the Certified Companies
interchangeably, as well as the course of deaiing between/among John Sr.,
'Patric_k, and the Original Qﬁadmzzi Companics.ovef the years, gav.e rise to
aﬁ irﬁplied promise that the Certified Companies were acquired fér the.
benefit of both Patrick and John Sr. The frial court further found that John
Sr. had been “unjustf:;' enriched” by the Certified Transactidn based Ia;-gely
on the same ﬁn&ings used to infer an implied promise —- the use of the assets
and/er credit of the Original Quadrozzi Companies io fund the purchasg: and
~ to develop the Certified Companies -- and 2 finding that Patrick had
contributed services to Athe Certified Companies without c'ompénsa"tion_. in
éddition, the trial court founci that Pairick’s claim for the imposition of a
constmctivé trust with respect to the Certified Transaction had been asserted
within the applicable limitations period -- notwithstanding that the
transaction occurred in 1990, and Patridc did not sue until 2005 — because
the “promise” made by John Sr. was not repudiated untif 2003, when
Theresa refused to acknowledge Patrick’s claim toa 25% ownership interest
in the Certified Companies, as John Sr. lay on his death bed. (R., pp. 30a,

31a).



. The trial céurt further found that the use of the assets and personne! of
the Original Quadrozzi Companies to eéerate the Certiﬁed Cozﬁp’anies,
-without proper compensation, and the tse of Certified Companiés instead-c__)f
QCC to produce concrete, also conétituted a waste of the corporate assets of
the Original Quadrozzi Companies z.md.a breach of fiduciary dﬁty. And
although the trial court made no refcrcnée to any evidence that the foregoing
activities were conducted in secret, for purposes of determining. when the
statute of limitations began to run with respect to Patrick’s claim for breacﬁ
of fiduciary duty in éonn-eciidn wiih the Certified Transaction, the trial _c;ourtv
found that ‘iii_ere’: Wasl 1o e"w'ideni:e that Joir Sr. had opéni_y ;epudiated his
ﬁdméairy obligaﬁoﬁs’ to.ﬂ};::"()riginai Quadrozzi Compa_nies more than 6
years Before Patrick commenced .this action in 2005. (K., pp.30a, 31a)}.

The Gowanus Transactmn

As to the Gawanus Transactzon the trial court found that Patrick had
also established a claim for the imposition of a constructive trust with

respect to the Columbia Street Property which was the subject of that
transaction. As in the case of the Certified Transaction 7 years eariier, the

trial court found an implied promise by John Sr. to acquire the Columbia

eet Property for the benefit of both himself and Patrick because an

L%
Hy

imphied promise to act in the best interests of Pairick and Qriginal Quadrozzi
p p g



Companies arose from JohnA Sr.’s role as a corporate fiduciary. The frial
couit ﬁmhﬁr found that an implied promise bf John Sr. to convey an interest
in Gow-z-mus to Patrick could lbe inferred from the circumstances éurroun'di‘ng
- the Gowaﬁus Transaction, to wit: the diversior of a %:érporate op‘poftﬁnity,
‘the manner in which John Sr. paid for the accfuiéition of the property, and the
use of the aséets and personnel of Géwan:}s and the Certified Coxﬁpanies and
the Original. Quadrozzi Companies interchangeably. Patrick established a
transfer in reliance upon the implied promiée by john Sr’. regarding the
Gawaﬁn§ Tra;'isaf;tion, according o ti;e trial couﬁ,- because Patrick offered
credible evidence concerning the “original source” qf the funds ﬁsed to
purchase the Columbia Stfeet;Pi‘operiy.-" The court also noted the fortgage
by Beach Charme‘!, 2 cempaﬁy in which Patrick had an interest, as additional
security for the loan from a third—pﬁrty lender, as well as his contribution
tqwa}d the vaiue (;f Gowanus after the purchase of the property, either
directly or through the Original Quadrozzi Compahies, as additional

evidence of Patrick’s “reliance” on John Sr.’s implied promise. John Sr. was

7 Rased on the trial court’s ultimate finding that the monies paid from accounts in the
names of certain Orig**zai Quadrozzi Companies constituted disiributions to Jjohn Sr.
from those companies — which were matched by ‘,o'nparawe pro rata distributions ic
Patrick, (R., pp. 665-668). -~ the “‘original source™ of the cash portion of the purchase
price for the Columbia Stree: Property is irrelevant. The cash portion of the purchase
price consisted of $1,250,000 of distributions to John Sr. from i’he: Original Quadrozzi

Pt e}

Companies for which Patrick received corresponding distributions, $500,000 which John



unjustly enriched by the Gowanus Transaction, ﬁhe trial c'our’:c found, because
he had diverted a corporate opportunity beloﬁging to the Original Quadrozzi
Companies by acquiring the Colurﬁbia Street Property through a carporatidn
owned solely by him, paid off the loan from the third-party with funds lent
té Gowarius by QCC ancf used the assets, facilities and personnel of the
Ongmal Quadrozzi Compamcs to operate Gowanus (R pp. 39a, 40a)},
Although 8 years had elapsed between the Gowanus Transactlon and
the commencement of this action, the trial court found that Patrick’s claim
for arcon'stmctive trust with respect to the Columbia Street Pf_operty wa;‘s
timelv‘ a,ssextéd bécausc Jobhn Sr. ’S. wrong.ﬁﬂ act in acquiring tha'Co} umbia
Street Pmpcrty in hls own name was just the ﬁrst in a series of wmz_zgifl_ﬁ acts
relating to the property, and that Patrick based his claim for - 2 constructive
trust in connection with the Gowanus Transaction on thusc_“continuing
wrongful acts.” In any event, accérding to the trial court, défandanté were
estopped ﬁ‘om asserting the statute of limitations with respect to Pairi-ck’s
claim for the imposition of a constructive trust on Gowanus because of John
St ’As practice of using the assels of the various companies miercnangeam}-
and without proper accounting, which [ulled Patrick into believing he had an

~ interest in Gowanus -- notwithstanding that the Form K-1s issued to Pairick,

Sr. withdrew from his IRA, and another $250,000 that John Sr. withdrew from other
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and the tax returns he signed, clearly réﬂectea &m he had no ownership
interest in Gowanus. Holding thai where a “ﬁduciary conceals facts” upon

- whicha clalm could be based a tolling of or estoppel to assert the statute of |
limitations is appropriate, and credxtmg Patnck’s testzmcny that he was
surprised to leamn much Iater that John Sr. was the sole owner of Gowanus,
the trial court found that John Sr. had breached his ﬁducxary duty by
;‘céncealing” from Patrick the acquisition ﬁf thelCol'umbia Street Property in
his own nafne - and defendants were therefor¢ estop;ﬁed from asserting the
siﬁtﬁte of limitations ag_ziinsl Palrick’s claim for a constructive trust with
réspecﬁ toﬁ such property. {R., 22 3334333). --

The trial court also fouudt at John Sr. had breached a fiduciary duty
by appropriatin'g to himseifa cerpor&te opportunity -- the opportunity to
purchase the Columbia Street Property -- by purchasing that property
through a company solely owned by him. The opportunity to purchase th:;t
property was a corporate opportunity (a “tangible expectanéy;’}, the trial
court found, because (i) it was originally intended that NYCEMCO would
be the purchaser of the properfy, not John Sr. individuaﬂy, and NYCEMCO
 had made the initial offer and had obtained commitments from a fitle

insurance company, and (it} there was a Z}hamess plan which contemplated

 accounts in his name.



use of the property as a bése of operatioﬁs for theﬁ Original Quadrozzi
Compaﬁies and the Certiﬁ¢d Companies, with Gowanus renting parts of the
property to the other companies. According to the trial court, -John Sr. also .
breached‘ his ﬁdﬁciary duties: (a) to Beach Channel, then he mortgaged its

| asséts in conhecti&n with the Gowanus Transac'tion; (b) to the Oﬁgénal
Qu'adfozzi Companies, by permitting their éssets, resources and persdnnd to
be used to develop and operate the Coiumbia Street Property without prcpér
accounting; and (c) to the Origi;aal Quadro.zzi Companies, when he devised a .
sche'ne in 1999 to benefit Gowanus at the expense of QCC by havmg
Gowanus make a loan, at a h; gh :merest rate, to Maspeth (a Certified
Company) so that M ﬂspeth could manufacture and sell goncrete to QCC.
(R., pp. 44a-46), |

The trial court determined that Patrick’s claims based on John Sr.’s

breaches of fiduciary dutj} in cdnnect_ion with the 1997 Gowanus
Transaction, as with the Certified Transaction 7 years earlier, were timely
asserted, based on its finding that there was no evidence that John Sr. had
openly repudiated his fiduciary obiigatioris as a director, ofﬁcef and majority
shareholder of the Original Quadrozzi. Comnames prior to 1999. In any

- event, according fo the trial court, defendants were estopped from asserting

12



the statute of limitations as a defense becaﬁsé of John Sr.’s conccalmenf of
" his breaches of fiduciary duty. (R., pp. 322, 332).

The Remeédies 7

Based on iis various findings regarding the Certified Transaction and
-the Gowanus Traésactién di’écusséd a.b'ove; many of which x';raré épp‘lied
interchangeably to fashioﬁ and sustain Pairick’s claims, thertria'l court
concluded fhat Patrié.k had prow}ed his cause of action for the imposition of a
constmétivc trust {on the assets of ti}e Certified Companies and the
Columbia Street Property) by clear and convincing cvidencé, and that he had
proved his causé of astioﬁ for breach of fiduciary duty {in connection with
both Lransachons) bya preporwrance of the evidence. In fashioning its |
remedies, however, the court made no mention of any actual or implied
promise by John Sr. to Patrick, but rather noted that the imposition ofa
constructive trust is a remedy for the breach of a fi duczary duty, and that the
impression of a constructive trust on the diverted assets is among the

remedies for the diversion of a corporate opportunity. Stating that the

2 LIfbs

25% of the shares of the Certified Companies and 25% of the shares of

Gowanus — should be imposed in favor of Patrick individually. (R., p. 49a).



) Additiqn@lly; tﬁe trial court found that John Sr. had used $2. million of
hislo'ﬁvn funds to purchase the Columbia Street Property (the remainder c;f
the pUrc;hase price having corié from a thirdfpart:y loan secured Ey a
mortgage on the property).. And although the céurt héid that Pﬁtrick was |
entitled to an accounting of distributions(exclﬁdirig inter—company |
distributions) madé to JIohm Sr. or his heirs (the ind.ividual defendants herein)
dating back to the formatzon of the Certified Campamcs and Gowanus (due
to the tolhng of the statute of ixmltatwns) it also found fhat Patrick had not
proven the amount uf any aamages ﬂowmg from the mter-company Ioans,

- the use of personnet of the Of‘mnal Qu adrnzux Cempan-es to develop and/or
operate the Certified Companies and Gowanus, or other simitar alleged
wrongdoing. (R., pp. 4%a, 50a).

The Facts

John Sr. was the founder, president and majority shareholder of most
of the Qriginal Quadrozzi Comr,\anies?8 the first of which, Quad, Inc., was

formed in 1956. Until 198 I, the sole shareholders of the Original

[, Trbe Q@r ol | PR R
CIE 5000 & nd his brother

A i - M 1. fan muera;Eoes L
HGIOZEL L ONIpEnIes inen in cXisiciice were Jonn

e
i

® The two exceptions were; Amstel, which was established 25 a minority-owned business
and owned 25% by Patrick's wife, Loretia Quadrozzi, 50% by Theresa and 25% by
Catherine; and NYCEMCO, which was originally only partly owned by Quad, Inc., with 7
independent third-party interests owning 75% of the company. (R, pp. 112, 113). Patrick
succeeded to his wife’s 25% interest in Amstel upon her death; anci Quarj Inc. s now the

sole owner of NYCEMCO.

i4



William Quadrozzi. In or about 1981, William Quadrozzi sold his interesfs
in those coinpaniés to John Sr;, and John Sr., in turn gifted a 25% interest in
the companies to his younger bether Patrick (R., pp. 6, 564). John Sr. |
 retained a 75% ownership interest in the Original Quadrozzi Companies .
(other ihan Aﬁlstéi) until his death in :?,004, and managed the companies.
Patrick attended to the outside work — concrete production and deiivel;y,
¢quiément maintenance énd similar activities. (R., pp. 356, 357, 626, 627).

'The Certiﬁe& Transaction

In 1990, John Sr. formed the Certified Companies and they purchased

the assets of the Certified and Transit Mix companies, from the trustes in the

- bénkmptcy proceedings invohring_ those companies, pursuant to an order
issued by the United States Distric_t Court for the Southemn District of New
York in an action captioned United States of America v. Anthony Salerno, ¢t

‘al., dated Maréh .27, 1990 (Plainﬁffs’ Trial Exhibit 4; R., pp 727-73._6). That‘

order stated in pertinent part:

“Ownership Of Business: [John] Quadrozzi and
[Michael] DiBenedetto shali be the sole
shareholders of each of the Quad [Certified]
Companies for the period defined in paragraph (1)
of this Order, unless the following conditions are

. imei. Quadrozzi and DiBenedetto shall be
permitted {o transfer or begueath their stock or
authorized issuance of new stock during that
pertod only with the approval of the United Stales,
which approval may be withheld for reasonable

15



causes relating to law enforcement...”

The period set forth in paragraph 1 of the order was seven years from the
date of the sale of the assets (R.,“p. 728)- Therefore, Paﬁj’ék’s élgim thai he
was alw#ys an owmner lapks credibility and Was, in fact, impossible — John
Sr. could not have tfansféi'red ﬁn interest in the Certified Companies to
 Patrick until the expiration of the seven-year period —- March 27, 1997 --
absent approval from the federal c_:cmrrt.9 Thus, had John SI;. promised
Patrick that he would have an interest in the Certified Compam&e, such an
interest could have becn conveyed aﬁer that date Thete is no evndﬁnce and
‘- particularly no documentary evidence, that any such conveyance was ever
{iiscusséds |

P;ior to approving the Certified Transaction, the federal court required
the purchasers’ principals to undergo formal bac;kgmund investigations (see
Plaintiffs’ Trial Exhibit 1, R., pp. 69-8#16). Patrick was aware of this |
requirement, and of tﬁe terms of the federal courtorder generally (R., pp.

135-137, 559-561). Large[y for that reason, Patrick opposed the Certified

£ (R., pp. 550
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not (and could not) have an ownership interest in the Certified Companies,

¥ No such approval was ever sought (R., pp. 167, 168) or obtained.
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Hé also was aware that ho action was taken duﬁﬁg the years after 199_‘? to
convey an interest in those companties to him. Patrick’s personal tax returns
and the K-1s issﬁed to him d-uﬁng those years specifically reflected
ownership interests in QCC, QEL, QRC and N\?CEMCO, but failed to
B reflect an ownership interest in any of the Ceﬁiﬁed Companies (sée

| Defendanfs > Trial Exhibits C, D, E, F, G, H, I,' LKL MandN R, pp.
1551 - 1811}). Additionally, the Certified Companies’ tax returns reflected
that their sole shai'cholder was John Sr. (see Defendants Trial Exhibits W, Y,
- and Z R, R. pp. 1865, 1875, 1884), and Patri_ck admittedly héd‘readi ly
available access to the books and records of Lhése_ companies. Yet, it was
not untii sometime in 292}3, when .John Sr. was ;or: kis deathbed that Patrick
pressed fér recognition of his perceived owner#hip interest in the Certified
Companies (R., pp. 50-52).

| Patrick méy have performed services for the Certified Companies

which were similar to those he performed for the Original Quadrozzi
Companies. However, those services were not gratuitous on Patrick’s part.
?aéréck, like all of ihe other ctupioyees who pérfbnne& servi;:cs for the
Original Quadrozzi Companies, and later for the Certified Companies, was

employed by Amstel, which functioned as a labor company, biiling and

17



recéiying payment from the other companies for the services of 1ts
employees {R., p. 486). Patrick was compensated by‘or through Anﬁtel for
the services he rendered to the Certified Companies, just as he was paid for
his ééwiccs io the O:igiﬁal Quadr_oizi Ccmpa;ics ., pp- '173'., 486).

' The Gowanus Transaction -

- On February 27, 1997, Gowanus purchased the Columbia Street
Property for $3.5 million. John Sr, took distﬁﬁuﬁons from certain of the
Original Quadrozzi Comp'anies,_m and withdrew $500,0-GD from his IRA and
~ $250,000 from oth_ér bank accounts in his name, and pa._id $2.-Q million to
Gowanus for thé cash porti'o_n of the purcﬁasé ;price (R., p. 661 - 665, 669 -
670), FCV Consultaats (“FCV™), a third-party{lender_, {oanéd $1.5 miilion to
Gowanus lto_ﬂind' the r;:mainder of the purc_h—asé pﬁce (see Plaintiffs’ Trial |
Exhibit 29A,_ 1066 - 1067 and R., p. 669-670, 1066~ 1067). Patrick paid w0 |
part of the ?urchase price for the Colllmbia St:eet' Property. The Iaaﬁ from
FCV was sécured primarily by the Coluhbia Street Property with Ian -'
additional mortgage being given on feal property owned by Beach Channel.

QCC ultimately paid off the loan to F cv, resulting int a loan from QCC to

" Ag noted zbove, the trial conrt found that comparable distributions (based on his
percentage ownership of the Original Quadrom Companies) were made to Patrick, and
heid that the pottion of the purchase price which did not come from a third-party loan

was personally pmd by John Sr. {R., p. 48a).
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Gowanus, which waé ihteres;f bearing and tracked “to the peqny” in the
bookg and records of bé‘th QCC and Gowanus {R.; pp. 669-671).

It was originaily qoni:émplated that the acquisition of the Columbéa
Street Property might be effected through -NYCE.MCO, the co;rxpany at
whicﬁ Jobn Ir. woriced.“ John Jr. had first leaned of the avaiiz;biiir;,: ofthe
properiy and brought it to the attention of his father and 1t was envisioned
‘ “that John Jr. would be responsible for the development of that property --
which consisted of grain silos and a leading dock on ﬁie Bmoi{iyn
waterffont'(R;, pp. 538—5‘40),_ It was ultimately deteriniued; however, that a
new ¢ ""p y {Gowanus} would be formed to acguire the pméeriy.

| Aside from supervsss g some clean-up work, Patrick had little to do
-with_the dﬁveiqpment — such as there has been - of the Columbia Street
Property (R, pp. 555-558, _574-57—6). The business plan initially prepared
 for the development of the property (see PlaintifP's Trial Exhibit; R., pp. .
83_3-896) -- although it was never implemented ~ reflects the limited role

that Patrick was to play in that development. Clearly, it was to be John Jr.’s

project.
! John Jr. worked at, and effectively ran, NYCEMCO, whick owned a permanently-
moored ship that stored cement (the adhesive component of coacrcte) io be sold 10 QCC,
the Certified Companies and other unrciated concrete companies (R., pp. 45, 37, 58}
Patrick on the other hand, was involved in the concrete dperations (R., pp. 356, 357, 626,
©627). That arrangement kept Patrick and John Jr., who did not get along, apart from one
another (R., p. 539).

19



‘Inter-Company Transactions

There were various loans and other transactions between and among -
the Original Quadrozzi Companies, the (_Ieftiﬁed Companies and Gowanus.
Those tra_nsactionls'wera each proper-Iy re;:orded in the respective compax‘lies’
: books and records. As défend#nfs’ ﬁnaﬁcia{- eﬁpert, Russell Kanzler

testified, each of the companies he reviewed kept separate books and
recor&, ahd gfeat attention to detail waé paid to ensure that those books and
-records were accurately kept (R, i 672-673i Such transactions were |
hardly outside tﬁe norm for closely-held cbﬁnpanies, whei;.her such
cbmpanies are wholfy or oniy_partialiy commonly owna.d.,
The Certified Comganies and Gowanus have always been éubchapter

'S corporations, and the booké and recon;ds of those companies ~- ;v.hich were
readily available to Patrick -- as well as their tax returns and Form K-1s,
have a[ways.'indicated that John Sr. was the sole sharcholder (R., :_pp. 656-
659). A!thqu’gh Fétrick- admittedly received K-1s from .the Original
Quadrozzi Companieé, he never received. K-Is from any of the Certified

n, 145-161), The fax refurng that Patrick

o)

Companies or Gowanus (R,

=

signed each year, to which his K-1s were aitached, ciearly refiected his
ownership interests in the Original Quadrozzi Companies, and his lack of

any ownership in interest in the Cerfified Companies or Gowanus (see
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Defendants’ Trial Exhibits C, D, E, F, G, H, I, L, K, L, M, N, O, P, Q, R, and

'S (R, pp. 1551-1858 ). .

ARGUME’NT
The trial court’s decision to impose a constructive trust in favor of
Patrick on the shares of the Certified Companies and Gowanus waé clearly
EITONeous. ’i‘he implied proxﬁise by John Sr. to convey an interest in those
companies was created from whole cloth, based on'}f’atr‘ick’s bela'téd
musings about what he thought should have éccurfed, angi some insinuations
) about_ statements made by J ohn Srr. that could not be explored at ﬁai. Inany
“event, if there was any such f)rorﬁisc, it wés breacfxed no _Iat::r tﬁan 1997 -- 8
years before this action was commenced -- when the supposedly promised
transfers did not occur.- Patrick’s excuse for not knowing that he did not
have an interest in the Certified Companies or Gowanus, and for not seeking
his claim to such interests until 2065 -- that his habit was not to read
documents that he signed -~ simply does not hold water, and is no basis for
the tolling of the statute of Iimita_tions.
Similarly, any breach of fiduciary duty be John Sr. in connection with
the Gowanus Transaction occ.urred when that transaction took piace in 1997.
Any subsequent conduct by John Sr. that was not a natural consequence of

his acquisition of the Columbia Street Property in his own name was
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séparate conduct indeééndcnt of the Gowanus Transaction itself. That
mdependent conduct, if it was wrongful carried its own statute of
limitations, but any relief would be limited to the damages flowing from that
specific con_duct; that would not include relief that may have been warranted
by the transaction itéelf -~ such as the fmposition ofa constructivc trust on

- the acqtiiréd assets, Furthermore, neither the Gowanus Transaction itself néx;
John Sr.’s subsequent management of Gowanus was kept secret from
Patnck or anyone else. Thc transactions between Gowanus and the Orxgmal
- Quadrozzi Companies were c*ondﬁcted open‘iy and accurately documented in
the books and records of the respective conpamﬁx - and those books and
records were readﬂy available to Patrick. The fact that Pairick did not avail
himself of the information z;sf his disposal -- and chose not to read what he
signcc.i. -~ is nno basis for a tolling of the statute of limifations with respect to
the Gowaﬁus Transaction, and it certainly does not warrant a finding of
fraud on the part of John Sr.

Point [

Tho Toifal £nzed?s N samd ol = seEEurn
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Trust in Favor of Patrick on 25% of the Shares
of the Certified Companies was Clear Error

Although the trial court makes mention of the Certified Transaction in

its discussion of breaches of fiduciary duty, the imposition of a constructive
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m;-si oﬁ the shares of the Certiﬁed 'Companieg.was based primarily on the
finding that John Sr. had made an implied plromise to convey an inter:e:ét in

" the C_erﬁf‘:ed Compaﬁics to Pa:trick. However, not only was‘such a promise
distilled _from the ethereal, if ariy such promise was mz;de, it was made 15
yeafs before this action was cor‘nm‘enced_. The imposition Vof a constructive
trust on 25% of the _ébares of the éerﬁﬁed Corripanies was clearly not
founded on aﬁy-sol_id evidentiary basé, and it was barred by the ap;ﬁlicable
statute of limitations.

A. The Elemenis of 2 Cﬂnstrucnve Trust Were Not
Established Here

The constructive truéi doctn‘n_e serves as a “ffaud~rectif);-ing" remedy
rather than an “intent—enforcing” one. Bankers Sec. Ins. Saciéty V.
Shakerdge,-49 N.Y.2d 939, 940, 406 N.E..?A.d 440, 441 (1986) (“Bankers
Security Life”). The equitable remedy of a constructive trust is only
warranted where there is “clear and convincing evidence” of (i) a
confidential or fiduciary relationship, (if) an express or implied promise, (iii}
a transfer in reliance on such promise and (iv) unjust enrichment of the
transferee. Martha Grahaim Sch. & Dance Found. v. Martha Gr.‘aham Cir.,
380 F.3d 624, 646, 2004 U.S. App. LEXIS 17452, 57 (2d Cir. 2(304). Here,
there was no fraud to be rectified; nor was there clear and convincing

evidence of the elements of a constructive trust.



According to the‘ trial court, Patrick “formed the belief” -that he had an
ownership interest in tﬁe Certified Compani;as because of the i_nteraction.
- bétween those companies and the Original Quadrozzi Companies foﬂéwmg
the Certified Transacnon (R pp-18a-19a). The court also based its ﬁndmg
.on the testimony of Michael Cotton, a British barrister and former adwsor
and allegedly close friend of John Sr. (“Cotton™),”* who testified that John
Sr had “told hlm” that Patrick was a “sharehoidcr in everything,” and that it
. was his (Cotton 5) “understandmg of the Certlﬁed 'I‘ransacnon that QCC
had acquired the ass.ets of the Certified and Transit Mix companies (R., pp-
392, 396-398)." A yﬂfSG‘ 2% impressions based on another’ls conduct or-
vague remarks are not suffi cient to establish an implied promise, Bankers |
Security Lz‘jé, 49N.Y.2d at 349 {statements by'decedent’s brother tha§ he
* would “do the right thing” and “take care of” decedent’s wife not specific
enouéh to pro;re a promise to apply certain insumn&e proceeds), and no such

promise was proved by Fatrick here,

2 - 4 P . " *
'* Cotton was paid $1,000 2 day to attend the trial in this action, and the uuco-npk;ed triai

in the prior dissolution proceeding, as well as his trave! and substantial lodging expenses
tc- attend both trials (R., pp. 412-417). Nevertheless, the trial court found that he was not
an “interested” witness for purposes of the Dead Man Statute (R., pp. 346-347).

B Apparently, Cotton never bothered to read the documentation pertaining to the
. Certified Transaction, much of which was introduced into evidence at trial, which clearly
belied his professed “understanding.”
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Moreover, as Patrick well knew, Joﬁn Sr. could -ﬁot hé;fe made a
promise — express or implied -- to convey aﬁ interest in the Certified
Cgmpanies to Patrick immediately foliowing the Certified Transaction,
bcpause any such proﬁise wmﬂd have violated the terms of a federal court
ordér, andr thus beenr void as illegal. See ltskov v. New foric Fertility
Institute, Inc., {:313 N.Y.S.2d 844, 11 Misc.3d 68, 5l9, (2d Dep’t 2006). Nor
éoul.d Pa&ick have “formed the belief” that that he had an ownershiﬁ interest
-in Certified Clompanies during the Se:ven{year period following the entry of

the federal court order, unless he assumed that John Sr. had violated the

kP

- terms of that order. No such suggestion was made at trial; nor was there any

o suct
evidence at trial from which a pz;omise by John Sr., to transfer an i;iterest in
the Certified Companies to Patrick or one of the Originél Quadrozzi
| Companiesl after the expiration of the seveﬁ«year period set forth in the
federal court ordér, could be inferred. Simply stated, the trial bouﬁ’s finding
of an ifnp]ied promise by John Sr. in connection with the Certified
Transaction flies in the face of the facts.

' The trial court also erred in its finding that John Sr. was unjustiy
enriched by Patrick’s performance of duties on b;ehaif of the Cgﬁiﬁed

f

Companies. As noted above, Patrick’s work for the Certified Companies

B

was not gratuitous, Patrick was emp!éyed by Amstel, as were other
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empfoyees who did- work for tﬁf_: other Original Quadrozzi Companies, and
Amstel was compensated for work done by its employees for the other
companiés (R., pp. 485-487). Such inter-corporate transactions among
companies that are cdmmqnly-owned, in whole or in part, are certainly not
uﬁusua[; nor are they inherently uniai#ﬁﬂﬁgg K#tilf v. Taylor, 364 N’.Y.S..‘Z_d
387,390, 80 Misc, 2d 839,‘ 841 (Sup. Ct. Kings Cty. 1975)). In ény event,
John Sr. did not have an ownership interest in Amstel, but Patrick did (after
the death of his wife; so, if dwnefship is the factor used to determine benefit
~ dertved irom f ﬁanéiai transactions between comparnies, Patrick, not John |
Sr;; gfesmabﬁy benefiied from incregéed izzécms:r o Amstéi. in fact, to the
extémt that any‘of the Originel Quadrozzi Companies beﬁeﬁted from the
Certi_ﬁed Transaction, Patrick would have shared in that benefit through the
distributions made to him as a 25% owner of the Original Quédrozzi
Companies. Notable in that regard is the trial court’s holding that'.Patr_ick
had proven no damages' resulting from the inter-company transactions
between the Original Qu‘admz‘ii Companies and the Certified Companies
{R., pp. 49&6{“}3'}. That hoiding operates 'to. preclude any finding that John
Sr. was unjustly enriched by the Certified Transaction -- as doss £he fact that
- Patrick consented to John Sr.’s consummation of the Certified Transaction -

WAAIE

without Patrick’s participation, by choesing not to become a gualified buyer
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of the Certified and Transit Mix assets (R., pp. 135-137, 559-561). Ifa party
consents to his exclusion from a tran;action, hé cannot be heard to assert that
those who benefited from the transaction were unjustly enriched. Edelman v.

Starwood Capi!a{ Gr&up, iLC, 70 A.D.Bc} 246, 250-251, 2009 NY Slip Qp |

9309 (1% Dep’t 2009).

B. Patrick’s Claim for the Imposition of 2 Constructive -
| Trust Wag Not Timely Asserted

The six-year _stétute'of limitations for a claim for the imposition of a
constructive tm_st begins to run at the time of the wrongful .cond_ugt or the
-event giving rise to a duty to éonvey the property. Marz‘c?ipin@ Inc. v.
Mqric, 705 N.Y.S;ﬁ& 684, 685, 271 AD.2d 507, 508 (2d Dep’t 2000).
When the property has been rightfully acqﬁircd but wrongfully withheld, the
statute begins to run when the égreement ot promise to transfer the property
to the promise is breache& or repudiated. /2. at 685. Here, the trial court
found that John Sr.’s implied promise that Patrick or QCC would have an
interest in the Certified Companies was not breached until 2963, as John Sr.
lay on h%s death bed, when Theresa disputed Patrick’s claim fo an interest in
the Certified Companics. That finding serves to de_rﬁenstr&te the danger in
distilling from vague testirnony & promise that is the glaringly ambiguous
and totally lacking in substance. See Bankers Security Life, 49 N.Y.2d at

S40; see aiso New York Uﬁz’v. v. Cont'tins. Co., 87 N.Y.2d 308, 662 N.E.2d
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764 (1995). Ifthe nature Qf the promise and when it is to be fulfilled are
never delineated, it leaves the door open to a nullification of the étatute of
limitations. '[ﬁat is what happened here.
Any promise made by John Sr. fo Patrick with respect to an interest in

' the Certified Compames necessanly must have been to the effect that, once |
the se;vemyear restnchcn on ownership of the Certified Ccrnpam es expired
~ he would transfer an interest in those companies to Patrick (or one of the
Or_igina.l _Qﬁadrozzi Cbmpaniesj. Thus, the promise would have been
brea;ﬁhed in 1997, when tl_xe restriction ou ownership of the Certified
Companies ex?ire;d, and th'; statute of limitations would have begun to run at
| that *;‘ime. The trial cburt*s finding .that the promise wasn't breached until
12003 was based on Patrick’s testimony that he believed he had an ownership
‘interest in the Certified Companies** and didn’t kiow otherwise until
Theresa disputed his assertion of such an interest. 'i;he court gﬁvc credence
:to that testimony because Patrick further testified that he “just signed what

was put in front of him” and didn’t read the tax returns he signed, or the K-

45-
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161).

' There is an obvious inconsistency between Patrick’s professed “belief” that he already
had an interest in the Certified Companics and his “understanding” that such an interest '
“would be” given to him (R., pp. 50, 51). If he already owned an interest, there was ne

need for a promise to give him one.
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| It —is axiomatic that a person is charged wfth knowledge of the contents
of documents that he signs. Consoiz‘ﬁatea’ Edison Co. of New York v. United
States, 221 F.3d 364, 371, 2000 U.S. App. LEXIS 18283 (2d. Cir. 2000);
Stater v. Fidelity & Casualty Co., 277 A.D. 79, 81, 38 N.Y.S.2d 28 (1 Dept.
1950); Metzger v. Aét&a Iﬁ.s: Co., 227N.Y. 411, 416, 125 NE 814 ( 1920).
Accordingly, Patrick’s denial of kncwlédge_thaf neither he nor ény of the
Original Quadrozzi Companies wére shareholders of any of the Certified
Companies -- for 13 years after the Certified Transaction -- is not only
incredﬁble, it is ineffectiver as é matter of law. Pairick’s failure io assert his '
claim to an interes | |
-- 15 years after the C%rti-zed T%ansaction, and 8 years after such an interest
could have been cerxvéyed to him — mandates a dismissai of that claim und;:r

the statute of limitations.'”

> The trial court’s hotding that Patrick’s ciaim for breach of fiduciary duty in respect of
Certified Transaction was timely fares oo better under the law and facts here. The trial
court found that there was no evidence that, prior to 1999, John Sr, had openly repudiated
ids fiduciary obligations io the Original Quadrozzi Companics -- which be allegediy
breached by using the assets and personnel of the companies to operate the Certificd
Companies, without compensation, and using the Certified Companies instead of QCC to
produce concrete (R., pp. 43a-d4a). However, there is abselutely no evidence that any of
those aitegediy wrongful aciivities were conducted in secret, or were not duly
documented in the books and records of the respective companies ~ of which Patrick is
also charged with knowledge. See Braitinan v. Vasile, 249 AD.2d 956, 672 N.Y.5.2d
564 (4™ Dept 1998). The breach therefore occurred when the first of those activities

took place, which was in 1990,
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Point II

The Trial Court’s Imposition of a Constructive
Trust in Favor of Patrick On 25% of the Shares
of Gowanus was Clear Error

While the trial court based its imposit;on of a constructive trust on the
shares of Gowanus in part on an implied promise by John Sr. to transfer an
interest in Gowanus to R:__fxtrick, the évjdenée of such a promise in t‘;enneciion
with the Gowanus 'ffansactien is even less plausible and more ethereal than
in the case of the Certified Traﬁsaciion. With respect to thc Cowanué
Transaction, the trial court essentially based its imposftion of a constructive
trust on its ﬁndiﬁg that John Sr. had breached his-ﬁdju(_:'iary duty to the
Original Quadrozzi Companies by diverting 'a cérgcra{e Gpqumnify -- the
opportunity to acquire the Columbia Street Property.- Howevé:r, not only

-does the evidence here demonstrate that no cbrporate oppomz;ﬁty wasg
d‘iverted,‘any such diversion -- and the corresponding breach éf fiduciary

duty -- occurred in 1997, eight years before this action was commenced.

A.  There Was No Diversion of a Corporate Opportunity

The trial court found that the opportunity fo acquire the Columbia
Stréét Property was a “tangible expectancy” of the Original Quadrozzi
Companies because it was originally intended that NYCEMCO would
i;urchase the property and tﬁere wés a busine§s plan prepared at some point

which contemplated that the property would become a new base of
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operatioﬁs for the Original Quadrozzi Companieé and the) Certified
Companies. However, the “tangible expectancy” test should nof be used to
’prcirent directors fromr pﬁrchasing property which might be useful to the
corporation, but only to bar the acquzsmon of property that the corporation
Vﬁeeds' or is seekmg, or which the dxrector is otherw:se under a duty to the
corporation to acquirc for it A!axana’er & Alexander v, Frz:zen, 147 A.D.2d
241 542 N.Y.S.2d 530 (1™ Dap t 1989} The Columbia Strect Propeﬁy did

not faH in that category.

First of all, there is uo.ev;dence that any of the Ongma{ Quadm:_m
-Property housed a maﬁne grain terminal. There was no inherfent synergy
between thafprépcrfqy and the concrete operations of the Original Quadrozzi
VCOmpanies; for those companies it was just anqther piece of real estate. The
a.vailabii'ity of the Columbia Street Property first came to the attention of
John Jr;, who ran NYCEMCO (R, pp. 502- 504). NYCEMCO was a

floating cement distribution facility which sold cement, not only to the

W
‘
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Criginal Quadrozzi Companies, but (o other concteie ﬁui’ﬁp&m&b as welt

have been a more logical acquisition for NYCEMCO than for the other

Original Quadrozzi Companies, there was no evidence that NYCEMCO
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needed to move its operation there -- and in fact 1t never did. (R., pp. 617-
618).

In any event, it is QCC and the other Orfgiﬁai Quadrozzi Companies,
not NYCEMCO, from which Patrick alleges the corporate opportﬂni:ty was
diverted (R., pp. 39a-40a). However, there was certaiﬂly no need for the
concrete operations of the Original Quadrozzi Companies or the Certified
Companies to be relocated to the Columbia Street Property. At the time of
the Gowanus 'I‘ran_sactio-n, the Redhook concrete plant acquired in the
Certified Transaction was in the process of being retrofitted, and that
;e.roﬁtting cenﬁnueé. after the Gowanu Trénsas-tién (R., pp. 174, 542-543).
The Redhook plant was a mile and a half from the Columbia S%_:r‘eet?raperty,
and any concrete plan relocated 'té or constructed on the Columbia Street
Property would have seryed the same area as thé Redhook piant:(R., pp-
542-543). it ﬂacrefare;-was not only umecess@, it simply made no sense
(having gone to the expense of retrofitfing the Red'hoo_i.c plant) fo put a
concrete plant oxi'the Cohimbia Street Property ~ and in fact that was never
done. |

As for the purported business plan, it was the creation of the British
barrister Cotton (see Plaintiffs’ Trial Exhibit 16, R., pp. 833-896). 1t was, in

fact, never implemented, so it hardly constitutes evidence that the property
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was necessary or essg:ntiél to the Original Quadrozzi Com_panie:s. The piaﬁ
does, howev_er, reﬂg:ct that Patrick’s involvement in the project was
contemplated to be — and it in fact was — minimal. His professed
expectatlon of an ownershlp inferest in Gowanus or. the Cofumb;a Street

| Property, therefore is not evidenced by the documents of record. Indeed, as
in the case of the Cf:rtiﬁed Companies, Patﬁck’s lack of an ownershipﬂ
_interest in Gowamis was a matter of record, not ém-iy- in the corporate books
reacii_.ly available to him, Eut in the K-1s he wa;s giveh and the tax returns he
signed (R., pp. 670-671 ISSI-I%SS). | |

B,  Patrick’s Claim for a2 Constructive Trust Based 3 on

- John Sr.’s Alleged Breach of Fsduciarv Duty Was Not
Timelv Asserted,

The trial court held that Patnck’s claim for the imposition of a

constructive trust and al[eged breaches of fi ducxaly duty by John Sr. in
connection with the Gﬂwanus Transaction were asserted within the
applicable limitations period because, the court found: (i) John St.”s
wrongful act in acquiring the Cclumbig Street Préperty was just the ﬁrs't ina
series of wrongful acts relating to the property; and {ii) there was no
evidence that John Sr. had openly ‘:pijdiaiéd his fiduciary obligations as a
director, officer and majority shareholider of the Ori gi;xai Quadrezzi

Companies prior to 1999. Alternatively, according to the irial court,
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defendants were estopped from asserting thg sta.tut'e of ii_mitatioﬁs asa
defense because John Sr. had further breached his -ﬁdqéiary duty by
“concealing” from Patrick that Gowanus, the corporation through which the
acquisition of the Coiumﬁia Street‘Propérty was effected, was wholly owned
by John Sr. -
The continuous wrong doctrine is appiied in certain cases where the
- harm sustained by the complainant is not exclusively traceable to the
oﬁgi‘na! objf-::cticnab'ie_ act; however, the subseqéént injuries or repeated
oﬁ’eﬁses create‘ separale'causes of action, ‘an_d; the ;!alute begins 15 run as to
each such caﬁse of action upon the corﬁmissior; of thé sp_éciﬁa injury or
offense. Covington v,v Walker, 3 N.Y .3d 28?;, 812 N.E.Zd 1025 (2004). On -
the other hand, wherert-he conduct subsequent to the initial transaction
;nereiy relates to or bears on the purpbse and nature.of that transactit_m
(Rutkin v. Refnfelc?’, 229 F.2d 248, 252, 1956 U.5. App. LEX]S 3570, 7-8 (2d
Cir. 19586)), or where the subsequent actions are not independent Wrongs but
merely actions which flow from the initial wrong (Korn v. Merrill, 403
F.Supp. 377, 382, 1975 1.8, Dist. LEXIS 15520, 7.3 {(8.D.NY. 1975)), or
where the actions taken subsequent to the diversion of a corporate
opportunity merely reflect damages from the diversion itself (Lowell Wiper

Supply Co. v. Helen Shop, Inc., 235 F.Supp. 640, {964 U.S. Dist. LEXIS
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6835 (S.D.N.Y. 1964)), the statute of limitations with respect to the initial
wrongdeing is not exte;lded or tolled, ai_ld the claim mﬁst be as'sgrted within
the limitations period maésured from the time of the i-qitial’, aﬂegedly
wmn'gﬁii, transaction -- here ﬂ;e_Gowanus Transaction in 1997. Otherwise,
zt iv'ouldl make a shambles of the statute -of !imitaiions and pérvefc its saiutarj'
purpose. Rutkin v. Reinfe!#, 229 F.Zd ét 252. Inother words, 2 piaiétiff |
cannot have it both ways. Either the éubsequent conduct flows from the
initial cbnduct, m which case the plaintiff must commeﬁce his action within

the limitations period measured from the initial conduct, or the subsequent

plaintiff is Eiﬁﬁted to damages atiributable to that separate ce;aduct. See
Russino v. Cont’l Assurance Co., 578 F.Supp. 1518, 1983 U.S. Dist LEXIS
- 10359 (S.D.N.Y. 1983).

It is clear from Patrick’s éompiaint int this action that the conduct of
John Sr. about which he complains is the acquisition of the Columbia Street
Property by Gowanus, a corporation solely owned by John Sr. The
sarbseq_aeﬁi conduct alieged in the complaini is attributed fo Theresa,
Catherine and John, Jr., the individual defendants ﬁerein. Pal;n'ck atiempted

to present at trial evidence of wrongful conduct by John Sr. subsequent to

the Gowanus Transaction itself. However, not only was such alleged
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conduct not Wfongfu_i,36 it was separate from and independent of the
Gowanus 'I‘rénsaction itself. Therefore, even if such conduct cquld be
deemed to constitute wrongdoing, a separate limitations period would apply,
and Patrick would be entitled only to relief relating fo- that independent. |
can-dupt. That relief would not include the imposition of a constructive trust
on the shares of Gowanus. The imposition of a constructive trust would
-only be appropriate for “;'rongd{:ing in connection with the Gowanus
Transaétion itself. Moreover, Patrick was entitled to no réi&ief in respect of
. John Sr.’s alleged conduct s&bgequenl lo the Gowanus _TranSactioh, because
the trial court held that Patrick proved no damages arising from such
panciuct.

in awarding Patrick a constructive trust on 25% of the shares of
Gowanus, bas_.ed on alleged conduct by John Sr. after the Gowanus
Transaction, the trial court not only disregarded the facts, it rﬁigappkied the
law. Patrick failed to assert Eis claim based on John Si.’s alleged breach of
fiduciary duty in cormeét%on with the Gowanus Transaction w_itﬁin the

LY

i - €., by February 26, 2003 ~ and such claim
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should have been dismissed.

16 As Russell Kranzler testified, there is pothing inberently wrongfil about the inter-
company transactions involved here (R., p. 688-691).
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. Nor did Patrick establish a basis _for' the appiicaiion of the doctrine of

equitable estoppel in connection with the Gowanus Transaction. Under the

“doctrine of equitable cstoppel,' a “defendant is estopped from pleading 2

statute of limitations defense if the “plaintiif was induced by fr_aud,v
misrepresentatién or deception to refraiﬁ from ﬁiing akti.méiy action’.” Ross
v, L;ouise Wise Servs., Inc., 8 N.Y.3d 47.8, 491, 868 NE 189, 198 (2007)
(quoting Simcuski v, Saeli, 44 N.Y.2d 442, 448-49, 377 N.E.2d 713 (1978)).
The _“uncommoh remedy of equitable estoppel“is triggered by some conduct
on the part of the defendant after the initial wfongdoingﬁ mere silence or
feiture to disclose the wrongdeing is insufficient’.” /4. {qnatiﬁg Zoe G. v.
Freder}ckcﬁa; 208 A.D.24 675, 6.75-5_:{5, 617 N.Y.S.2d 370 (2d Dep't
1994)). Fu%thcrmeij_e, “dae aiiig'eﬁee Gﬁ the part of the plaintiff i bﬁngiﬁg
his action is an essential element for the applicability of the doctrine of

equitable estoppci.” Simcuski v, Saeli, 44 N.Y.2d at 450; See also Marshall

- v. Duryea, 172 AD.2d 726, 569 N.Y.S.2d 112 (2d Dep’t 1991); Putter v.

North Shore Univ. Hosp., 7 N.Y.3d 548, 858 N.E.2d 1140 ('2006)'; Pahlad v.

Brusiman, 3 N.Y.3d 561, 865 N.E.2d 1240 (2007); Greene v. Abboit
Laboratories, 148 A.D.2d 403, 539 N.Y.S.2d 531 (1* Dep’t 1989).

Moreover, the plaintiff has the burden of establishing the applicability of the



doctrine. Pafe v. Pate, 17 A.D.3d 334, 791 N.Y.5.2d 849 (éd Dep’t 2005).
Patrick fell far short of meeting that burden here.

Patrick produced no evidence that ang' statements or affirmative
conduct by John le'. misled him into believiqg_ that Patrick or any of the
' On'éinal Quadrozzi' Co.m;:fani'es haé an ownership intereét in Gowanus. On .
the contrary, John Sr.’é sole ownership of Gowanus was a matter of record_,
and thosé records were readily avaiia'ble. to Patrick (R., pp.189-191), and he

is charged with knowledge of those records (Braitman v, Vasile, 249 A.D.2d

ﬂ'c

~r W

956). Moreover, Palrick’s fack u{' any ownership interest in Gowanus was
c!;arly evident fmm the tax rétﬁms he signed and the K-1s he received (R.,
-pp. 1551-1858 ). |

Patrick obviously kr'ew that Gcwarus was formed to purchase the
| Columbia Street Pmperty, and that NYCEMCO had not been the purchaser
(R., p. 84—85, 189-191). That change in plans alone shouid have led to an
inquiry By Patrick concerning the ownership of Gowanus. Having buried his
head iﬁ the sand, and not botheredrto read documents which he signed -- and

of which he is charged with knowledge (z"t‘ oot ef al. v. Zalfer ei al., ZN.Y.5

742, 1888 NUY. Misc. LEXIS 773 (N.Y. City Ct. 1888); John-Manville Sales
Corp. v. Store. 5 AD.2d 110, 114, 169 N.Y.5.2d 259 (1™ Dept. 1957)) --

Patrick cannot be heard to say that he was surprised to learn years later that



John Sr. was the sole (:ﬁwrnéj;r of Gowanus. His testimony in that regard was
simply not credible; asa mattex.* of law. |
For the same reasons, the trial court’s con¢lusion that there wés no
: evidence that Jéhn Sr. had openly 'repudiatled his ﬁduciaﬁ obligations in
connection with the. Gowanu;«; Trénsabtion befﬁre 1999 is also clearly‘
erroncous. His purChéée of the Columbi#; Street Property through a
corporation of @hich he was the sole owner, to the extent that it was a
breach of fiduciary duty, was open and a matter of record (R., pp. 188-191,

1551-1858). There is no evidence that John Sr. took affirmative action 1o _

 aware of those cirﬁﬁmstances, it Was‘ hecause of his lack of due diligence.
Eveﬂ if John Sr. had frauéﬁ!ent!y‘ misled Patrick into b eiieving that
either ?atrick or oﬁc of the Original Quadrozzi Compé;lies had an Qﬁncrship
interest in Gowanus, by concealing his sole ownership of that conipany,
Pétrick‘s claim that John Sr. héd breached his fiduciary duties in ccennec':tion
with the Gowanug Transaction wouid nevertheless be time-bamred. Pursuant
CPLR §213{8), & “cause of action sounding in frsud must be b b raag‘-'x‘
within 6 years from the date of the fraudulent act or 2 years from the date the
party discovered the fraud or eould, with due diligence have discovered it.”

That discovery accrual rule applies to fraud-based breach of fiduciary
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claims. Ozelkén v. Tyree Bros. E_'m;rf. Sgrﬁs, inc., 29 A.D.3d 877,878, 815
N.Y.5.2d 265, 267 (2d Dep’t 2006); Kaufinan v. Cbhen; 307 AD.2d 113,
‘ 760 N.Y.S.2d 157 (1* Dep_’t 2003). As discﬁséefi above, with a minimum of
due diligence Patrick certamly could have discovered the allegediy
fraudulently—conceaied breach of fi ducxary duty - John Sr.’s purchase of the
Columbia Street Property in his own name - in 1997, when the Gawanus
Transaction occurred. However, even crediting Patrick’s testimony that he
didr_l’t le';xm of the facts concerning ownership of Gowanus until the summer
of 2003, wheu Theresa disiaué‘ed his assertion df an iﬁte’rest iﬁ Gowanus (R., |
p. 50-51, 85-86, 561-562), that was more than two years before b m‘S-
commencement of _this action in November 10, 2005. Unésr any reasonable
interpretation of the evidentiary recofd here, therefore, Patrick’ c—lai;h for
breach of fiduciary duty in connection with the Gowaﬁus Transaction is
time-barred, and the imposition of a constructii(e trust in favor of Patrick on

25% of the shares of Gowanus was clearly erroneous.
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CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated above, defendants respectfully urge the court 1o
reverse the trial court’s decision dated Iune 10, 2009, and the interlocutory
Judgment entered pursuant thereto on July 13 2010, and direct that judgment

be entered dismissing this action in its entirety, with prejudxce

Dated: July 26,2011 Respectquiy submitted,

New York, New York /7
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